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5 p UNITED STATES ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION AGENCY
5 3 HEGION 4

g M g ATLANTA CEDERAL CENTER

E) S &4 FORSYTH STREET

" pp” ATLANTA, GECRGIA 303038580

MAR 29 2012

CERTIFIED MA
RETURN RECEIPT REQUESTED

Ms, Allison K. Exall

Curran Tomke Tarski L.L.P.
2001 Bryan Street

Suite 2000

Piallag, Toxas 75201

RE:  While Wave Fonds
Consent Agreement and Final Order
Docket No, EPCRA-Q4-2012.2018(b)

Dear Ms, Exall

Enclosed please find an excented copy of the Consent Agrecmemt and Final Order that resolves the
Emergency Planning and Community Right-to-Know Act of 1986 matter {Docket No. EPCRA-04-2012-
2018{b)y) involving White Wave Foods. The CAFO was filed with the Regional Hearing Clork, as
required by 40 C.F.R. Part 22 and became effective on the date of the filing,

Also enclosed, please find a copy of the “Notice of Securities and Exchange Commission Registrants’
Dty to Disclose Environmental Legal Proceedings.” This documeni puts you on notice of your
potential duty 1o disclose to the Security and Exchange Commission any environmental enforcement
actions taken by the Environmental Protection Agency. If you have any questions with regards to the

SEC’s environmental disclosure requirements, you may refer to the contact phone number gt the bottom
of the SEC Notice,

If you have any questions, please call Ms, Mary Beech at {(404) 562-9669,
sincerely,

*‘7?7 V’;r’é% #”"‘

Caron B. Falesner
Chicf
EPCRA Enforcement Section

Enclosures
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N THE MATIER OF:

UNITED STATES ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION AGENCY
REGION 4

e
White Wave Foods Dacket Number: EPURA-04-201 i«’Z{}iS{b);S

Respondent.
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CONSENT AGREEMENT AND FINAL ORDER
I Nature of the Action

i, This 18 & civil penalty proceeding pursnant to Section 109 of the Comprehensive
Environmental Response, Compensation, and Liability Act {UERCLA), as amendced, 42 U.8.C.
§ 9809 and Scction 325 of the Emcrgency Plannmg and Commauanity Rightto-Know Act
{EPCRAY, 42 UL.S.C. 8 11643 and pursuant fo the Consolidated Rules of Practice Governing
Administrative Assessment of Civil Pepalties, and the Rovocation/Termination or Suspension of

Permiits (Consolidated Rules), codified at 30 C.F.R. Part 22

2. The authority (o take action under Section 109 of CERCLA, 42 U KR.C. § 9609 and
Section 325 of EPCRA, 42 U.S.C. § 11045, 15 vested i the Administrator of EPA, The
Administrator of EPA hag delegated this asthority under CERCLA and under EPURA 1o the
Regional Administrators by EPA Delegations 14-31 and 22.3-A_ both dated May 11, 1994, The
Regional Administrator, Region 4, has redelegated to the Directar, Air, Pesticides and Toxics
Management Drvision, the authority under CERCLA by FPA Region 4 Delenation 14-3 1, dated

March 8. 1999, and updated August 6, 2004, and the authority under EPCRA by EPA Reogion 4
Delegation 22-3-A. dated November 8, 1994, Pursuant to theso delegations, the Director of the
Afr, Pesticides amd Toxics Management Division has the authority to commence an enforcoment

action ag the Complainant 1n thig matter,

3. Complainant and Respondent have conferred for the purpose of scitlement
pursuant 10 40 C.F R, § 22.18(h} and desire to resolve this matter and settle the allegations
deserthed herein without o formul hearing. Therclore, without the tuking of any evidence or
testimony, the making of any argement, or the adiudication of any issue 1o this matter, and in
accordance with 40 CF.R. §§ 22.13(b) and 22.18{b). this Consent Agreement and Final Grder
{CAFO)Y will sinwltancously commence and conclude this matter. Respondent is White Wave

Fouds (Respondents.

4. Respondent, White Wave Foods, is a corporation doing bustness in the State of

Florida,
5 Respondent is & "person” as delined in Section 32H 7Y of EPCRA, 42 1.8.C

§ 13049(7) and Scetion 101(213 of CERCLA, 42 U.S.C. § 9601(21).
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&, Respondent has a “facility” as that term is defined by Section 101(9) of CERCLA.
12 U.S.C. § 9601{9) and by Scetion 329(4) of EPCRA, 42 U S.C, § 1104%4).

7. Respondent's facility 1s located at 2198 W Beaver Street, Jacksonville, Florida,

3. Respondent is an "owner or operator” ol she facility as that term is defined by
Section 10120XA) of CERCLA, 42 U8, § 9601(20)AL

Violation of Section 103{a) of CERCLA

g9, Section 102{z) ol CERCLA, 42 11.8.C. § 9602(a), required the Administrator of
EPA to publish g list of substances designated as hazardous substances which, when released
inte the environment, may prosent substantial danger to public health or welfare or the
environment and to promulgate regulations cstablishing the gquantity of any hazardous substance
the relense of which was required to be reported under Scetion 103(a) of CERCLA, 42 U.S.C.
§ 9603{a). EPA has published and amended such a bist, including the corrgsponding reportable
guantities (RQ) for those substances. This list, which is codified ar 40 C.F.R. Part 302, was
initially published on April 4, 1985 (30 Fed. Row. 134743 and is periadically amended.

10. Section 103(a) of CERCLA, 42 US.C, § 9603{u), aid the regulations found at
40 C.¥.R. § 302.6, require a person in charge of a facility or vessel to immediately notify the
National Response Centor INRC), 4s soon a5 he or she has knowledpe of 4 release of a hazardous
substance from such facility or vessel in an amount equal to, or greatar than the R,

[1.  Respondent was in charpe of the facility during the relevant perind dexcribed
below.

12, Anphydrous ammonia ts a "hazardous substance” as that term is defined by Section
101143 of CERCLA, 42 U S.C. § 9601{14), with an RQ of 100 pounds, as specified in 46 C.F.R.
$302.4,

13, On June 7, 2011, Respondent had a release of anhydrous ammonia above the RQ)
at the lavility.

14, LPA alleges that Respondent violated the notification requirements of Sedlion
103(a) of CERCLA, 42 U.8.0. § 9603a), and the applicable CERCLA regulations, 48 CF.R.
§ HIL6, by falling to mmedialely notify the NRC as soon as Respondent had knowledge uf'the
relegse of anhydrous ammionia in an amount equal to or greater than its RQ at Respondent’s
facility and is therefore respondent is subject to the assessment of penalties under Section 109 of
CERCLA, 42 U.S,C.§ 9609,

t5.  Pursuant to Section 109 of CERCLA, 42 U.8.C. § 9609, and 40 C.F.R. Part 19,
EPA may assess a penalty not to exeeed $37,500 for each violation of Section 103(a) of
CERCLA, 42 U.5.0C. § 9603{a}, that occurred after January 12, 2000, Tach day a viclation of
Section 103 continues constitutes a separate violation, Civil penalties under Section 109 of
CERCLA, 42 U.S.C. § 9609, may be asscssed by Adininistrative Order.



Vialattons of Scofion 304(a) of EPCRA

{8, Section 304(a) of EPCRA, 42 U.S.C. $11004(a) and the regulations found at
40 C.F.R. § 335, Subpart {, reguire the owner or operator of a factlity at which hazardous
chemicals are producced, used or stored. to immediately notify the State Fmerpency Response
Commassion (SERC) and Local Emcrgency Planning Commuttes (LEPC) when there has boen a
release of s CERCLA hazardous substance or an EPCRA extremely hazardous substance in an
amount equal to or greater than the RQ. Section 304{a) does not apply to any release which
resulfs in exposure to persons solely within the site or sites on which a facility 15 located.

17.  Respondent was the ownes or operator of the facility during the relevant period,
deseribed below.

I8, At all times relovant to this matter, the facility produced, used, or stored
anhvdrons ammonia, which is a "hazardous chemical” as defined vader Section 311{e) of
EPCRA, 42 U.S.C. § 11021(c) and under 29 C.F.R. § 1910.1200(c).

19, Anhydrous ammonia is an “extresnely hazardous substance” as that term is
defined by Section 329¢3) of [PCRA_ 42 LLS.C. § 11049(3), with an RQ of 100 pounds, as
specified in 40 CFR. Part 3585, Apps. A& B,

20, On Fune 7. 2011, Respoendent had a release of anhydrous ammonia above the R
at the facility. EPA alleges that the release resulted in the potential for exposure to persons
bevond tho site or sites on which the faclity is located. -

21, EPA alleges that Respondent violated the notificalion requirements of Section
304(a) of EPCRA, 42 U.8.C. § 11004(a), and the applicable EPCRA regulations of 40 CE.R.
Part 355, Subpart C, by failing to inenediately notify the SERC and LEPC as soon as
Respondent had knowledge of the release of anhydrous sromonia in an amount equal o or
greater than the RQ at Reapondent’s facility, and is therefore subjoct to the assessment of
penalties under Section 325 of EPCRA, 42 LLE.C. §11045,

22, Pursuant to Section 325() of EPCRA, 42 US.C. § 11045¢(b}, and 40 CF.R.
Part 19, EPA may assess a punalty of not more than §37,500 for each violation of Sections
3044a) and (c) of EPCRA, 42 US.CL § 11004(a)c), that occurred afier Jannary 12, 2009, Civil
penalties under Section 325(b) of EPCRA, 42 U.S.C. § 11045¢h), may be assessed by
Administrative Order.

V. Consent Agreement

23. For the purposes of this CAFO, Respondent admits the jurisdictional allegations
set out above but neither admits nor denfes the factual allegations set out above,

24.  Respondent waives any right to contest the allegations and its right to appeal the
proposed Final Order sceompanying the Consint Agreement.

25, Respondont consents to the assesstaent of and agrees to pay the civil penalty as
set forth in this CAFO.



6. Respandent certifics that us of the date of its exscution of this CAFO, it is in
compliance with all relevant requirements of CERCLA and EPURAL

27,  CompHance with the CAFO shall rosolve the allegations of violations contained
herein, This CAFO shall not otherwise affect any habilrty of Respondent to the United States
other than as expressed herein. Neither EFA nor Complainant watves any right to bring an
gniorcement action against Respondent for violation of any federal or state statute, regulation or
permit, to initiate an action for imminent and substaniial endangerment, or (o pursue crimimal
gnforcement.

28. Complatsant and Respondent agree 1o setile this matier by their oxecution of this
CAFQ. The parties agree that the scttioment of this mafter is in the public interest aud that this
CAFO is consistent with the applicable requirements of CERCLA and EPCRA.

Y. ¥Fingl Order

30, Respondent shall pay a CERCLA civil penalty of FIVE THOUSAND SEVEN
HUNDRED FIFTY TWG DOLLARS (55,732} for the CERCLA violution which shall be paid
within thirty (30) days of the effective date of this CAFO.

3. Respondent shall pay the CERCLA avil penaity by forwarding a cashier’s or
certified check, payable to "EPA Hazardous Substance Superfund” 1o one of the following
addresses:

BY MAIL HY OVERNIGHT
U8, Environmental Protection A gency LS. Bank
Superiund Payments Government Lockbox 979076

Cincinnati Finance Center
P.O. Box 976076
St. Louts, Missouri 63197-6000

US EPA Superfund Payments
1608 Conveption Plaza
SL-MO-C2-GL

5t Louis, Missourt 63101

The check shall reforence on 118 face the name and the Docket Number of the CAFD.

31, Respondent shall pay the EPCRA civil penalty of FIVE THOUSAND SEVEN
HUNDRED FIFTY TWO DOLLARS (85,752) for the EPCRA viclations which shall be paid
within thirty (30) days of the effective date of this CAFQ.

-

32 Respondent shall pay the civil penalty by forwarding a cashier’s or certified check
payahle to "Treasurer, United States of America,” to the following address:

BY MAIL BY OVERNIGHT

U.S. Environmental Protection Agency
Fines and Penalties

Cincinnat Finance Confer

P.O. Box G74077

St. Lows, Missouri 63197-0000

1.8, Bank

Government Lockbox 979677
U5 EPA Fines and Penalties
1005 Convention Plaza
SL-MOC2-0G1

St Louls, Missour: 63101



The check shall reference on its face the name and the Dockot Number of the CAFO.

33, At the time of payment, Respondent shall send 2 separate copy of each check. and
a written statermnent that pavment has been made in accordance with this CAFQ. to the following
persons at the following wddresses:

Regional Hearing Clork
V.S EPA. Region 4

ol Forsyth Streel, 8.W.
Atdanta, Georgia 30303

Mury Beech

LLS. EPA, Region 4

Alr, Pesticides & Toxics Management Divigion
61 Forsyth Street, S.W.,

Atlanta, Georgia 30303

Saundi Wilson

(LS, EPA, Region 4

Office of Environmental Accountability
&} Forsyth Street, 8. W,

Atinnta, Georgia 30303

34, For the purposes of statc and federal income taxcs, Respondent shall not be
cntitled, and agrees not to attompt, to claim a deduction tor any ¢ivil penalty payroent made
pursuant o this CAFO. Any attempt by Respondent to deduct any such payments shall
constitule a vielation of this CAFO.

35, Pursuant to 31 U.8.C. § 3717, EPA is entitled 1o assess interest and penalties on
debis owed 1o the United States and a charge [0 cover the cost of processing and handling a
delinguent cluim. Interest will therglore begin to accrue an the ¢ivil penalty from the effective
date of this CAFO (F the penalty is not paid by the date required. Interest will be assessed at the
rate established by the Secretary of Treasury pursuant 10 31 US.C. § 3717, A charge will be
assessed (0 cover the costs of debt colicction, mchuding processing and handiing costs and
attorney fees. In addition, a penalty charge will be assessed on any portion of the debt that
remains delinquent more than ninety (90 days after payment is due.

36. Complamnant and Respondent shall bear their own cosis and attorney fees in this
matier.

37.  This CAFO shall be binding upon the Respondent, its successors, and assigns.

38, The following individual is auihorized to receive service for EPA in this
praceedmg:



Caron B, Falconer

118, EPA, Region 4

Air, Pesticides & Toxics Management Division
81 Forsyth Street, 8.W.

Atlanta, Georgia 30303

(404) 562-8451

39, Each undersigned reprosentative of the parties to this CAFO certifies that he or
she is fully authorized by the party represented 10 enter into this CAFQ and legally bind that
party to it.

V1. Effective Date

44, The effective date of this CAFO dhall be the date on which the CAFQ 13 fliled with
the Regional Hearing Clerk.

AGREED AND CONSENTED TO:

W!uteWav@mds

CM %\M (Sigmature)  Dater A /6/“’ A A
hm‘\f ToHN ,Q T@N&L/;g@,.s {Typed or Printed}
Tide: FPLedT mannrGe R, (Typed or Printed)

U.S. Environmental Protgetion Agency

By:{_J M“"’{h\ Date; Z-&r-2042.
v H. ﬁamstd
Difector

Alr, Pesticides & Toxics
Management Division
Region 4

4
APPROVE[ AND SO ORDERED this 47  davof JHewek 2012,

e 8. A Ak
Susan B. Schub
Regional Judicial Officer




CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE

| hereby cortify that [ have this day served a truc and correct copy of the foregoing Consent Agreement

and Final Osder, [n the Matter of, White Wave Foods, Docket No, EPCRA-04-2012.2018(bh), on the

partics histed below in the manner indicated:

Caron B. Falconer (Via [PA’s internal muil}
LS. EPA, Region 4

Alr, Pesticides & Toxicy Management Division

461 Forsvih Street

Atlarta, Georgia 30303

Robert Caplan {Via EPA's mrernal mash)
LS. EPA, Region 4

Otfice of Ervironmental Accountahility

&1 Forsyth Street

Atlanta, Georgia 30303

Ms. Allison K. Exall {Certified Mail. Return Receipt Requested)
Cuwran Tomko Tarski L.L. P
2001 Bryan Streel

Dallas, Texas 75201

Date: % - 9\52#@\

Patric

Uinited States Environmental
Protesction Agency, Region 4
Atlante Federal Center

&1 Forsyih Street, S.W,
Atlanta, GA 30303

(404} 562951



